



Permit/ID Number: 11652  
Violations Cited: State Underground Petroleum Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act) (Rev. 2002), and the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation 61-92.280.34(c), R.61-92.280.35(c), R.61-92.280.93(a), and R.61-92.280.110(c) (Supp. 2011).

Summary: Danny Smith (Respondent) owns and operates underground storage tanks (USTs) in Greenville County, South Carolina. The Respondent has violated the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulations as follows: failure to provide records to the Department upon request; failure to have a trained Class A/B Operator by August 8, 2011; failure to demonstrate financial responsibility; and, failure to provide financial responsibility to the Department upon request.

Action: The Respondent is required to: submit acceptable financial responsibility documentation; complete Class A/B Operator Training; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand, one hundred fifty dollars (**\$1,150.00**).

3) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 11-0313-UST  
Order Date: March 2, 2012  
Respondent: **David & Soliman, LLC**  
Facility: 301 Stop & Go  
Location: 15836 Highway 301, New Zion, SC  
Mailing Address: 8452 Old Cavalry Drive,  
Mechanicsville, VA 23111  
County: Clarendon  
Previous Orders: None  
Permit/ID Number: 02427  
Violations Cited: State Underground Petroleum Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act) (Rev. 2002), and the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation 61-92.280.34(c) and R.61-92.280.35(c) (Supp. 2011).

Summary: David & Soliman, LLC (Respondent) owns and operates underground storage tanks (USTs) in Clarendon County, South Carolina. The Respondent has violated the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulations as follows: failure to provide operator training records to the Department upon request and failure to have a trained Class A/B operator by August 08, 2011.

Action: The Respondent is required to: submit proof of a trained Class A/B operator and pay a civil penalty in the amount of three hundred dollars (**\$300.00**).

- 4) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 11-0394-UST  
Order Date: March 28, 2012  
Respondent: **Larry H. Jenkins**  
Facility: Free Time Convenience Store  
Location Address: 393 Hampton Street, Chesnee, SC  
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 186, Chesnee, SC 29323-0186  
County: Spartanburg  
Previous Orders: None  
Permit/ID Number: 10122  
Violations Cited: State Underground Petroleum Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act) (Rev. 2002), and the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation 61-92.280.93(a) and R.61-92.280.110(c) (Supp. 2011).

Summary: Larry H. Jenkins (Respondent) owns and operates underground storage tanks, located in Chesnee, South Carolina. The Respondent has violated the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulations as follows: failure to demonstrate financial responsibility and failure to provide financial responsibility records to the Department upon request.

Action: The Respondent is required to: submit a completed Certificate of Financial Responsibility and proof of mechanism and pay a civil penalty in the amount of five hundred dollars (**\$500.00**).

- 5) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 11-0404-UST  
Order Date: March 27, 2012  
Respondent: **KCA, LLC**  
Facility: B & M Grocery  
Location: 4554 Highway 151 Bypass, Jefferson, SC 29718  
Mailing Address: 2448 East John Street, Matthews, SC 28105  
County: Chesterfield  
Previous Orders: None  
Permit/ID Number: 17741  
Violations Cited: State Underground Petroleum Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act) (Rev. 2002), and the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation 61-92.280.34(c), R.61-92.280.40(a), R.61-92.280.41(b)(1)(ii), and R.61-92.280.44(a) (Supp. 2011).

Summary: KCA, LLC (Respondent) owns and operates underground storage tanks (USTs) in Chesterfield County, South Carolina. The Respondent

has violated the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulations as follows: failure to provide records to the Department upon request; failure to provide an adequate release detection method; failure to conduct an annual tightness test on pressurized lines or have monthly monitoring; and, failure to check line leak detector function annually.

Action: The Respondent is required to: submit acceptable tank tightness test results for the 2,000-gallon racing fuel UST or proof that the 2,000-gallon racing fuel tank contains less than one (1) inch of residue and pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand, eight hundred sixty-five dollars (**\$1,865.00**).

6) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 11-0419-UST  
Order Date: March 15, 2012  
Respondent: **Singh, Inc.**  
Facility: AM PM Food Mart 4  
Location: 4225 Hardscrabble Road, Columbia, SC 29223  
Mailing Address: 37 Moonglo Circle, Columbia, SC 29223  
County: Richland  
Previous Orders: None  
Permit/ID Number: 07917  
Violations Cited: State Underground Petroleum Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act) (Rev. 2002), and the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation 61-92.280.34(c) and R.61-92.280.40(a) (Supp. 2011).

Summary: Singh, Inc. (Respondent) owns and operates underground storage tanks (USTs) in Richland County, South Carolina. The Respondent has violated the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulations as follows: failure to provide records to the Department upon request and failure to provide an adequate release detection method.

Action: The Respondent is required to submit Statistical Inventory Reconciliation (SIR) records for both USTs at the Facility, or acceptable tank tightness and line tightness test results for both USTs at the Facility, or proof that both USTs contain less than one (1) inch of residue; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand, three hundred dollars (**\$1,300.00**).

7) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 12-0033-UST  
Order Date: March 9, 2012  
Respondent: **N Spring, LLC**  
Facility: Eli's Food and Gas

Location Address: 2500 Hardscrabble Road, Columbia, SC  
Mailing Address: 240 Brookspring Road, Columbia, SC 29223  
County: Richland  
Previous Orders: None  
Permit/ID Number: 19581  
Violations Cited: State Underground Petroleum Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act) (Rev. 2002), and the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation 61-92.280.10(e) (Supp. 2011).

Summary: N Spring, LLC (Respondent) owns and operates underground storage tanks, located in Columbia, South Carolina. The Respondent has violated the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulations as follows: introduced petroleum products into a UST for which the owner did not hold a current valid registration.

Action: The Respondent is required to pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand dollars (**\$1,000.00**).

8) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 12-0034-UST  
Order Date: March 9, 2012  
Respondent: **Higgins Transport, Inc.**  
Facility: Eli's Food and Gas  
Location Address: 2500 Hardscrabble Road, Columbia, SC  
Mailing Address: 4567 Oxford Drive, Evans, GA 30809-3843  
County: Richland  
Previous Orders: None  
Permit/ID Number: 19581  
Violations Cited: State Underground Petroleum Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act) (Rev. 2002), and the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation 61-92.280.10(e) (Supp. 2011).

Summary: Higgins Transport, Inc. (Respondent) is a transport company for delivering petroleum products to underground storage tanks, located in Columbia, South Carolina. The Respondent has violated the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulations as follows: introduced petroleum products into an UST for which the owner did not hold a current valid registration.

Action: The Respondent is required to pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand dollars (**\$1,000.00**).

- 9)     Order Type and Number:                   Consent Order 12-0045-UST  
       Order Date:                             March 9, 2012  
       Respondent:                            **Coley, Inc.**  
       Facility:                               Cuz's Corner  
       Location:                              419 A S Congress St, Winnsboro,  
  SC 29180  
       Mailing Address:                   P.O. Box 85, Blackstock, SC 29014  
       County:                                Fairfield  
       Previous Orders:                    09-0254-UST (\$1,000.00)  
       Permit/ID Number:                11040  
       Violations Cited:                 State     Underground     Petroleum  
  Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act) (Rev. 2002),  
  and the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation 61-  
  92.280.34(c), R.61-92.280.40(a), R.61-92.280.41(b)(1)(ii), and R.61-  
  92.280.44(a) (Supp. 2011).

Summary: Coley, Inc. (Respondent) owns and operates underground storage tanks (USTs) in Fairfield County, South Carolina. The Respondent has violated the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulations as follows: failure to provide records to the Department upon request; failure to conduct proper release detection; failure to conduct an annual line tightness test on pressurized lines or have monthly monitoring; and, failure to conduct annual testing of automatic line leak detectors and/or sump sensors.

Action: The Respondent is required to: submit acceptable line tightness test results; submit line leak detector test results; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand, one hundred dollars (**\$1,100.00**).

- 10)    Order Type and Number:                Consent Order 12-0068-UST  
       Order Date:                             March 29, 2012  
       Respondent:                            **Southern Stores, LLC**  
       Facility:                               Southern Pride  
       Location:                              1011 S. Anderson Road, Rock Hill,  
  SC 29730  
       Mailing Address:                    Same  
       County:                                York  
       Previous Orders:                    None  
       Permit/ID Number:                16874  
       Violations Cited:                 State     Underground     Petroleum  
  Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB Act) (Rev. 2002),

and the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation 61-92.280.20(c)(1)(ii) (Supp. 2011).

Summary: Southern Stores, LLC (Respondent) owns and operates underground storage tanks (USTs) in York County, South Carolina. The Respondent has violated the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulations as follows: failure to use an adequate overfill prevention system in an underground storage tank.

Action: The Respondent is required to pay a civil penalty in the amount of five hundred dollars (**\$500.00**).

### **Hazardous Waste Enforcement**

- 11) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 12-02-HW  
Order Date: March 15, 2012  
Respondent: **Capsugel Manufacturing, Inc.**  
Facility: Capsugel Manufacturing, Inc.  
Location: 535 Emerald Road  
Greenwood, SC 29646  
Mailing Address: Same  
County: Greenwood  
Previous Orders: None  
Permit Number: SCD 039 135 744  
Violations Cited: The South Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Act §44-56-130(2) and the South Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Regulation 61-79.265.173(a), R.61-79.262.34(a)(2), R.61-79.265.173(d), R.61-79.265.173(c), R.61-79.273.13(d)(1), R.61-79.273.15(c)(1), R.61-79.273.14(e), R.61-79.262.13(d), and R.61-79.265.15(d).

Summary: Capsugel Manufacturing, Inc. (Respondent) manufactures pharmaceutical and nutraceutical capsules. The Respondent has violated the South Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Regulations as follows: failure to keep a container holding hazardous waste closed during storage, except when it is necessary to add or remove waste; failure to ensure that the date upon which each accumulation period begins is clearly marked and visible on each container of hazardous waste; failure to label each container of hazardous waste with the EPA Hazardous Waste Number(s); failure to permanently and legibly mark the container with the following or equivalent statement: "Hazardous Waste – federal laws prohibit improper disposal;" failure to contain any universal waste lamp in containers or packages that are structurally sound, adequate to prevent breakage, and compatible with the contents of the lamps; failure to place the universal waste in a container and mark or label the container with the earliest date that any

universal waste in the container became a waste or was received; failure to label or mark clearly each lamp or a container or package in which such lamps are contained with one of the following phrases: "Universal Waste - Lamp(s)," or "Waste Lamp(s)," or "Used Lamp(s);" failure to file a revised or new Notification form whenever the information previously provided became outdated or inaccurate; and, failure to record inspections in an inspection log or summary to include the name of the inspector and the date and nature of any repairs or other remedial actions.

Action: The Respondent has agreed to: ensure compliance with the South Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Act and Regulations; ensure that containers of hazardous waste are closed and labeled; ensure universal waste is managed properly; ensure that a new or revised Notification form is submitted to the Department whenever the information previously provided becomes outdated or inaccurate; perform and record inspections of hazardous waste storage areas on an inspection log or summary; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of three thousand, nine hundred sixty dollars (**\$3,960.00**).

### **Solid Waste Enforcement**

12) <u>Order Type and Number:</u>	Consent Order 12-03-SW
<u>Order Date:</u>	March 5, 2012
<u>Respondent:</u>	<b>Creekside of York County, Inc.</b>
<u>Facility:</u>	Creekside of York County, Inc. Class One Landfill
<u>Location:</u>	U.S. Hwy 21, Rock Hill, SC 29708
<u>Mailing Address:</u>	270 Sutton Road, Fort Mill, SC 29708
<u>County:</u>	York
<u>Previous Orders:</u>	None
<u>Permit/ID Number:</u>	462748-1701
<u>Violations Cited:</u>	South Carolina Solid Waste Policy and Management Act of 1991 (Rev. 2002), Solid Waste Management: Solid Waste Landfills and Structural Fill, Regulation 61-107.19, Part III.A.1.; General Permit Section III, Special Conditions A.5., A.8., B.1., B.4., B.6., B.8. and B.10.

Summary: Creekside of York County, Inc. (Respondent) operates a Class One Landfill located in York County, South Carolina. The Respondent has violated the South Carolina Solid Waste Policy and Management Act, Solid Waste Management: Solid Waste Landfills and Structural Fill Regulation as follows: failure to maintain proper slopes at the Landfill; failure to apply soil cover at least monthly; disposal of waste within 100 feet of a water feature; and,



failure to dispose of unauthorized waste within 48 hours of its receipt at the Landfill.

Action: The Respondent is required to: repair and maintain slopes at the Landfill; apply soil cover at least monthly; ensure that future disposal of solid waste does not occur within 100 feet of any water feature at the Landfill; ensure that waste other than land-clearing debris is removed from the permitted area within 48 hours of receipt; submit a current map of the Landfill depicting the waste disposal area; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of four thousand, two hundred dollars (**\$4,200.00**).

- 13) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 12-05-SW  
Order Date: March 27, 2012  
Respondents: **Mitch Hook Composting Site**  
Facility: Mitch Hook Composting  
Location: 116 Carlin Drive, West Columbia, SC  
Mailing Address: 72 Ridgecreek Drive, Lexington, SC 29072  
County: Richland  
Previous Orders: 07-23-SW (\$3,200.00), 08-30-SW (\$500.00)  
Permit/ID Number: 402696-3001  
Violations Cited: South Carolina Solid Waste Policy and Management Act of 1991 (Rev. 2002), and Solid Waste Management: Yard Trash and Land-Clearing Debris; and Compost Regulation 61-107.4, Section F.12.b. (Supp. 2011).

Summary: Mitch Hook Composting Site (Respondent) performs composting operations in West Columbia, South Carolina. The Respondent failed to submit an annual report by October 15, 2011, in violation of the Solid Waste Management: Yard Trash and Land-Clearing Debris; and Compost Regulation that requires the Facility to submit an annual report by October 15<sup>th</sup> of each year.

Action: The Respondent is required to: submit the annual report and pay a civil penalty in the amount of five hundred dollars (**\$500.00**).

## **BUREAU OF WATER**

### **Drinking Water Enforcement**

- 14) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 12-018-DW  
Order Date: March 9, 2012

Respondent: **High-Rise Hotels, Inc.**  
Facility: Wingate by Wyndham  
Location: 33 Beacon Drive  
Greenville, SC 29615  
Mailing Address: 2917 East Palmetto Street  
Florence, SC 29506  
County: Greenville  
Previous Orders: None  
Permit/ID Number: 23-477-1  
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J) and  
61-51(K)(1)(c)

Summary: High-Rise Hotels, Inc. (Respondent) owns and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool. The Respondent has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows: the chlorine level was not within the acceptable range of water quality standards; the water level was low; the flow meters were not operational; two "Shallow Water-No Diving" signs were not posted; the automatic controller was not operating properly; the United States Coast Guard approved life ring did not have a rope attached; the emergency telephone was not functional; the skimmers were not operating properly; the bound and numbered log book was not maintained on a daily basis; and the Respondent failed to schedule an inspection of the pool prior to re-opening after Department closure. A violation was issued for failure to properly operate and maintain the pool on three occasions and the pool was re-opened prior to receiving Department approval on one occasion.

Action: The Respondent is required to: submit a corrective action plan and schedule of implementation to address the deficiencies; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand five hundred forty dollars (**\$1,540.00**). The civil penalty has been paid.

15) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 12-019-DW  
Order Date: March 1, 2012  
Respondent: **Norman Swalgren and Sheila Swalgren, Individually and d.b.a. Siesta Cove Marina and RV Park**  
Facility: Siesta Cove Marina and RV Park  
Location: 256 John Long Road  
Gilbert, SC 29054  
Mailing Address: 161 Lake Harbor Drive  
Lexington, SC 29072  
County: Lexington  
Previous Orders: None  
Permit/ID Number: 3270802

Violations Cited:  
58.1(B)(1), and 61-58.1(K)

S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-58.7, 61-

Summary: Norman Swalgren and Sheila Swalgren, Individually and d.b.a. Siesta Cove Marina and RV Park (Respondents) own and are responsible for the proper permitting and operation and maintenance of a public water system (PWS). The Respondents have violated the State Primary Drinking Water Regulations for failure to obtain a permit to construct and final approval to operate a PWS and failure to properly operate and maintain a PWS as follows: an un-permitted septic tank had been installed within the one hundred foot pollution-free radius of Well 1; there was a large presence of ants within and around the well house of Well 2; one of the six bladder tanks did not have the proper air/water ratio and was inoperable; the maximum number of permitted taps that could be supported by the existing available storage was exceeded; and the Respondents did not employ a distribution operator of the appropriate grade.

Action: The Respondents are required to: submit a corrective action plan to address the deficiencies to include the un-permitted construction and operation; pay a civil penalty in the amount of six thousand forty-three dollars and seventy-five cents (**\$6,043.75**); and, pay a stipulated penalty in the amount of six thousand forty-three dollars and seventy-five cents (\$6,043.75) should the Respondents fail to meet any requirement of the Order.

16) <u>Order Type and Number:</u>	Consent Order 12-020-DW
<u>Order Date:</u>	March 20, 2012
<u>Respondent:</u>	<b>Voorhees College</b>
<u>Facility:</u>	Dawson Center
<u>Location:</u>	5573 Voorhees Road Denmark, SC 29042
<u>Mailing Address:</u>	P.O. Box 678 Denmark, SC 29042
<u>County:</u>	Bamberg
<u>Previous Orders:</u>	None
<u>Permit/ID Number:</u>	05-012-1
<u>Violations Cited:</u>	S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51(J)

Summary: Voorhees College (Respondent) owns and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a pool. The Respondent has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows: the chlorine level was not within the acceptable range of water quality standards and the shepherd's crook did not have a permanently attached handle. A violation was issued for failure to properly operate and maintain the pool on two occasions.

Action: The Respondent is required to: submit a corrective action plan and schedule of implementation to address the deficiencies and pay a civil penalty

in the amount of five hundred sixty dollars (**\$560.00**). The civil penalty has been paid.

17) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 12-021-DW  
Order Date: March 19, 2012  
Respondent: **Dorchester County**  
Facility: I-95/Shadow Grove  
Location: 370 Misty Glen  
St. George, SC 29477  
Mailing Address: 2900 Landing Parkway  
North Charleston, SC 29420  
County: Dorchester  
Previous Orders: None  
Permit/ID Number: 1870914  
Violations Cited: S.C Code Ann. Regs. 61-58.5(P)(2)

Summary: Dorchester County (Respondent) owns and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a public water system (PWS). The Respondent has violated the State Primary Drinking Water Regulations as follows: the PWS exceeded the maximum contaminant level (MCL) for Haloacetic Acids (five) (HAA5).

Action: The Respondent is required to: submit an investigative report to determine the causes of the HAA5 MCL exceedances and a corrective action plan to include proposed steps to address those causes; and, pay a **stipulated penalty** in the amount of four thousand dollars (**\$4,000.00**) should the Respondent fail to meet any requirement of the Order.

### **Water Pollution Enforcement**

18) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 12-010-W  
Order Date: March 19, 2012  
Respondent: **Midland Industries, LLC**  
**d.b.a. Midlands Capital, LLC**  
Facility: Midlands Capital / Moore Plant  
Location: 7601 US Highway 221 South  
Moore, SC 29301  
Mailing Address: Same  
County: Spartanburg  
Previous Orders: None  
Permit/ID Number(s): SC0036145  
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. § 48-1-110(d)  
(2008), S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-9.122.21(d)(2) (Supp. 2010).

Summary: Midland Industries, LLC d.b.a. Midlands Capital, LLC (Respondent) owns and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a manufacturing facility located in Spartanburg County, South Carolina. The Respondent failed to submit an administratively complete application for renewal of its National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit to the South Carolina Department of Health and Environmental Control (Department) at least one hundred eighty (180) days prior to the expiration date of the permit.

Action: The Respondent is required to: continue to operate the facility in accordance with the most recently issued NPDES permit until a new permit becomes effective and pay a civil penalty in the amount of one thousand dollars (**\$1,000.00**).

19) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 12-011-W  
Order Date: March 27, 2012  
Respondent: **Owens Corning Composite Materials, LLC**  
Facility: Owens Corning/Anderson Plant  
Location: 4837 Highway 81 South  
Starr, SC  
Mailing Address: P.O. Box 1367  
Anderson, SC 29622  
County: Anderson  
Previous Orders: 08-126-W (\$3,200.00)  
Permit/ID Number: SC0038156  
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. §48-1-110(d) and 24  
S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-9.122.41(a)(1) (Supp. 2010).

Summary: Owens Corning Composite Materials, LLC (Respondent) owns and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of the Owens Corning/Anderson Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF) serving the fiberglass reinforcement manufacturing plant in Anderson County, South Carolina. The WWTF exceeded its effluent quality limitations for total suspended solids (TSS) reported on its Discharge Monitoring Reports (DMRs) for the July, August 2011 and January 2012 monitoring periods.

Action: The Respondent is required to: submit a corrective action plan reporting corrective actions taken or planned which will enable the WWTF to meet TSS limitations and pay a civil penalty in the amount of three thousand six hundred dollars (**\$3,600.00**).



Action: The Respondent is required to: cease open burning, except as in accordance with the regulation; pay a civil penalty of six hundred dollars (**\$600.00**); and, pay a suspended penalty in the amount of five thousand four hundred dollars (\$5,400.00) should the Respondent fail to meet any requirements of the order.

22) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 12-014-A  
Order Date: March 5, 2012  
Respondent: **Isomedix Operations Inc. d.b.a. STERIS Isomedix Services**  
Facility: Isomedix Operations Inc. d.b.a.  
STERIS Isomedix  
Location: 2072 Southport Road  
Spartanburg, SC 29306  
Mailing Address: Same  
County: Spartanburg  
Previous Orders: None  
Permit/ID Number: 2060-0180  
Violations Cited: U.S. EPA Regulation 40 CFR §§ 63.363(f), 63.364(c), 63.366(a)(3), and 63.10(c)(5) through (c)(8); S. C. Code Ann. § 48-1-110(d); and 24A S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.63, Subpart O and Subpart A.

Summary: Isomedix Operations Inc. d.b.a. STERIS Isomedix (Respondent) is a plant located in Spartanburg, South Carolina, that utilizes irradiation and ethylene oxide to sterilize package materials for use primarily in the surgical industry. On May 31, 2006, the Department issued Air Quality Operating Permit 2060-0180 (Operating Permit) to the Respondent. The Respondent violated U.S. EPA Regulations, South Carolina Air Pollution Control Regulations, and its Operating Permit as follows: failed to demonstrate continuous compliance with each of its required operating limits for its catalytic oxidizer and flare; failed to convert strip chart data to record a daily average oxidation temperature each day any instantaneous temperature recording fell below the minimum temperature; and, failed to include in its semiannual compliance reports all required information.

Action: The Respondent is required to: demonstrate continuous compliance with each required operating limit of the catalytic oxidizer and flare (or other control device(s)); include in its semiannual compliance reports all information as required by Subpart O and Subpart A; comply with a corrective action plan to demonstrate continuous compliance for its flare in the interim period until such time as the scrubber can be installed; submit a construction permit application for an acid-water scrubber, which will replace the flare; within one year of the issuance date of a construction permit for the new scrubber, ensure

that it has completed construction and begun operation of the scrubber; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of twenty thousand four hundred dollars (**\$20,400.00**).

23) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 12-015-A  
Order Date: March 27, 2012  
Respondent: **Southern Builders of York County, Inc.**  
Facility: Winthrop University  
Location: 521 East White Street  
Rock Hill, SC 29730  
Mailing Address: Same  
County: York  
Previous Orders: None  
Permit/ID Number: N/A  
Violations Cited: U.S. EPA 40 CFR 61.145 and 61.150, and 25A S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-86.1, Sections IV, V, VIII, and X.

Summary: Southern Builders of York County, Inc. (Respondent), located in Rock Hill, South Carolina, is a general construction contractor. The Respondent violated U.S. EPA Asbestos Regulations and South Carolina Asbestos Regulations as follows: failed to submit a written notice of intent to renovate to the Department at least 10 working days prior to beginning a major asbestos project; failed to ensure that the required work practice requirements were adhered to while engaged in a major asbestos project; failed to obtain a Department-issued asbestos project license prior to engaging in a regulated asbestos project; failed to use workers that were licensed by the Department while engaged in a regulated asbestos project; and, failed to ensure that asbestos-containing materials were properly disposed of while engaged in a regulated asbestos project.

Action: The Respondent is required to: ensure a building inspection is performed prior to engaging in any future renovation or demolition operations; ensure that applicable notifications are submitted to the Department and required licenses are obtained prior to engaging in future asbestos projects; not engage in regulated asbestos projects unless licensed by the Department; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of three thousand dollars (**\$3,000.00**).

24) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 12-016-A  
Order Date: March 28, 2012  
Respondent: **Camtech Custom Paint and Fabrication, LLC**  
Facility: Camtech Custom Paint and Fabrication, LLC



Location: 818B Central Avenue  
Summerville, SC 29483  
Mailing Address: Same  
County: Dorchester  
Previous Orders: None  
Permit/ID Number: 0900-0099  
Violations Cited: U.S. EPA 40 CFR 63.11175(b), and  
24A S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.63.11175(b); and 24A S.C. Code Ann.  
Regs. 61-62.6, Section II.(b)

Summary: Camtech Custom Paint and Fabrication, LLC, (Respondent) paints custom motorcycles and fabricates and paints miscellaneous military parts. The Respondent submitted an air quality construction permit application to the Department on November 9, 2009. The Respondent violated U.S. EPA Regulations and South Carolina Air Pollution Control Regulations as follows: failed to submit a timely Subpart HHHHHH Notice of Compliance Status; and failed to prevent fugitive particulate matter that could reasonably be controlled from escaping into the ambient air on three (3) occasions, July 22, 2010, February 23, 2011, and November 22, 2011.

Action: The Respondent is required to: comply with the record keeping and reporting requirements of Subpart HHHHHH; prevent particulate matter emissions at its facility that can reasonably be controlled from escaping into the ambient air; ensure that sandblasting booths are operated and maintained in order to control fugitive particulate matter emissions and comply with future opacity limits; and, pay a civil penalty in the amount of ten thousand dollars (**\$10,000.00**).

25) Order Type and Number: Consent Order 12-017-A  
Order Date: March 28, 2012  
Respondent: **Flakeboard America Limited**  
Facility: Flakeboard America Limited  
Location: 579 Willamette Rd., Bennettsville,  
SC 29715 / 582 Willamette Rd.,  
Bennettsville, SC 29715  
Mailing Address: PO Box 1017, Bennettsville, SC  
29512 / PO Box 636, Bennettsville,  
SC 29512  
County: Marlboro  
Previous Orders: 09-018-A (\$6,000.00)  
Permit/ID Number: 1680-0046 / 1680-0050  
Violations Cited: U.S. EPA 40 CFR 70.6(c); S.C.  
Code Ann. § 48-1-110(d); 24A S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.63, Subpart  
DDDD; 24A S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.70.6(c); and 24A S.C. Code  
Ann. Regs. 61-62.1, Section II.C.3(i).

Summary: Flakeboard America Limited (Respondent) owns and operates a Medium Density Fiberboard facility located at 579 Willamette Road in Bennettsville, South Carolina (Bennettsville MDF). The Respondent also owns and operates a particleboard facility located at 582 Willamette Road in Bennettsville, South Carolina (Carolina Particleboard). The Department issued Part 70 (Title V) Air Quality Operating Permit TV-1680-0046 (Title V Permit) to Bennettsville MDF, effective November 1, 2001. The Department also issued Title V Permit TV-1680-0050 to Carolina Particleboard, effective October 1, 2005. Bennettsville MDF violated U.S. EPA Regulations, South Carolina Air Pollution Control Regulations, and its Title V Permit as follows: failed to ensure its thermal catalytic oxidizer (TCO) was at or above the minimum temperature established during the most recent source test; failed to maintain the three-hour block average TCO temperature above the minimum temperature established during the last performance test; and failed to submit an accurate and complete Title V Annual Compliance Certification for the reporting period ending December 31, 2010. Carolina Particleboard violated South Carolina Air Pollution Control Regulations as follows: failed to provide mass emission data and emission calculations indicative of the potential uncontrolled and controlled mass emission rate of each applicable air contaminant emitted from each source covered by the construction permit application.

Action: The Respondent is required to pay a civil penalty in the amount of ten thousand dollars (**\$10,000.00**).